UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
GAINESVILLE DIVISION

o |TOBCYISS WHPJAK.

ARTHUR D. WEISS,

. Plaintiff,
V8.

THE CITY OF GAINESVILLE, a
municipal ~ corporation  organized
under the laws of the State of
Florida,

Defendant.
/

CIVIL ACTION BY COMPLAINT FOR DEPRIVATION OF CIVIL RIGHTS,
BREACH OF CONTRACT, BREACH OF IMPLIED COVENANT
DAMAGES AND INJUNCTTVE RELIEF SOUGHT AND
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

The Plaintiff, Arthur D. Weiss, by and through his undersigned counsel, sues the
Defendant, City of Gainesville, for injunctive relief and damages resulting from thel
Defendant’s intentional deprivation of the Plaintifl’s constitutionally protected rights.
This action is brought pursuant to Title 42 §1983 of the Code of Laws of the United
States of America, the Florida Constitution, Florida’s common law of contracts and
Chapter 86, Florida Statutes.

~ JURISDICTIONAL BASIS OF THE CLAIMS

1. This action is brought pursuant to Article 1, Section 10 and 42 US.C
§1983 and claims violations of the Plaintiff’s civil rights as guaranteed by the Contracts

Clause and Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.



2. This Court has jurisdiction of the claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1331. The
action arises out of the Constitution of the United States of America and alleges
violations of constitutionally protected rights of the Plaintiff, who is a citizen of the
United States of America.

3. The claims brought under the Florida Constitution, common law of
contracts and statutory law arise from the same operative nucleus of facts and
circumstances that form part of the same case and controversy. Accordingly, the court
has jurisdiction over these supplemental claims pursuant to 28 US.C. §1367.

4, All of the actions of the Defendant giving rise to this action substantially
" occurred in Alachua County, Florida.

5. The amount in controversy exceeds $100,000.00, exclusive of statutory

entitlement to attorney’s fees and costs.

THE PARTIES

6. The Plaintiff, Arthur D. Weiss (hereinafier “Weisé”), at all relevant times,
owned a 940 acre parcel that is now located in the City of Gainesville, Alachua Counly,
Florida. This parcel is known as the Gainesville North Community Activity Center PUD
aka Greenways of Gainesville. See attached exhibit A.

7. The Defendant, City of Gainesville (hereinafter the “City”) is an

incorporated municipality empowered by and deriving its authority from Article 8,

Section 2 of the Florida Constitution and Fla, Stat. Chapter 166. The governing authority

of the City of Gainesville, Florida is its City Commission.



PREDICATE FACTS SUPPORTING
THE CAUSES OF ACTION
PRECIS

8. This cause of action is brought as a result of the City’s purposeful and
ostensibly authorized violations of Arthur Weiss’s rights under Article 1, Section 10 and
the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution;. The City adopted and
applied by ordinance, a single-family residential classification, which unreasonably
impaired, altered and extinguished existing terms and its obligations under a contract
with Weiss in violation of the contracts clause. This single-family classification was
adopted and applied to Weiss based on improper pre-textual motives and for arbitrary and
capricious reasons without any rational basis thereby frustrating and significantly
impairing Weiss’s legitimate vested rights and valuable property interests without due
process of law, which resulted in great economic loss, mental anguish and personal
suffering. These violations were done under the color and aﬁthority of state law and
constitute state action. The aforementioned conduct gives tise to the state supplemental
claims for breach of contract, breach of i.ﬁlplied covenant of good faith, declaratory relief

and inverse condemnation.

THE ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

9. On October 30, 1989, an Annexation Agreement was entered into between
Arthur Weiss and the City of Gainesville for the inclusion of 940 acres owned by Weiss
into the City. “The Agreement was for a specific term of 15 years and was to become
effective on the date when the City annexed the property subject fo the agreement.

10.  The Annexation Agreement, pursuant to §10 of the agreement and

elsewhere, expressly created certain development rights permitting Weiss to use and



develop the property in a manner consistent with Exhibit B of the Agreement. Exhibit B
provided for mixed uses and densities for a Planned Use District (PUD) classification of
718 acres east of NW 43™ St. Specifically, these permitted uses under the agreement
included commercial use devoted to office and retail, multi-family, and retail single
family residential uses. See attached Exhibit B.

11.  Moreover, Exhibit B to the agreement governed all future comprehensive
plan amendments and the rezoning of the property by the City and could only be
modified as mutually agreed upon by both parties.

12. In consideration for the specific uses set forth above, Weiss, under the
Annexation Agreemeht, obligated himself to specifie development exactions such as the
dedication of land for the widening of U.S. 441, the construction of turning lanes, traffic
lights and open spaces for parking.

13, Under §6.0 of the Annexation Agreement, no other development exactions
were to be enacted by the City after the date the parties executed the agreement.

14.  Both the City and Weiss were also obligated under §8.0 of the agreement
to diligently pursue all reasonable actions necessary to fulfilt their obligations throughout
the existence of the 15-year term of the agreement.

WEISS’S RELIANCE ON THE CITY’S REPRESENTATIONS AND ACTIONS

15.  1In reliance of the representations of the City contained in the Annexation
Agreement, Weiss consented to the annexation of his 718 acres on the east side of NW

43" Street by the City in September 1992.



16, On October 27, 1992 and February 22, 1993, Norman Bowman of the
Department of Community Development represented to Weiss that the City was in the
process of attempting to implement the proposals.

7. In further reliance of the City’s representations, Weiss, pursuant to the
terms of §8.0 of the Annexation Agreement, proceeded with the voluntary annexation of
the remaining 215 acres located west of NW 43™ St which was completed in 1993. As
such, the annexation agreement became effective and its fifteen-year term commenced.

18.  Consistent with its obligations under the Annexation Agreement, in July
1993, the City began the Land Use amendment process to bring Weiss’s property into the
City’s comprehensive plan. The City determined that the propésed comprehensive plan
amendment providing for the PUD classification in the future land use element of the
comprehensive plan was consistent with the City’s current comprehensive plan and
would not negatively impact any of the seven concurrency management areas such as
roads, mass transit, sewer and water. The City further represented that the other mass
transit facilities would be online so as to further alleviate any COncerns OVer Concurrency.

16, In refiance of the City’s continued actions and representations in the
implementation of the terms of the Annexation Agreement, Weiss proceeded with a
Develo-ﬁm.ent? of Regional Impact Application for Development Approval (DRV/ADA)
process for his property. Weiss hired numerous consultants and engineers to prepare the
necessary reports, engineering and environmental studies as part of the application
process.

20, In furtherance of his obligation under the Annexation Agreement and

reliance upon the City’s representations and actions, Weiss incurred approximately one



million dollars in expense directly attributable to the development review process and
DRI application.

21,  On Aungust 22, 1994, the City Commission approved the proposed
comprehensive plan amendment pfoviding for the PUD classification of the Weiss
property in the future land use element of the comprehensive plan upon final passage of
Ordinance 4000/0-94-08.

22, However, in the event Weiss abandoned the PUD development process,
Ordinance 4000/0-94-08 provided a sunset provision that required the City to rezone the
property within four years or the PUD future land use district would become null and
void and the future land use map would require amendment upon proper notice to reflect
the property’s underlying future use as single family.

73 Weiss was assured by the City and by the annexation agreement that
extensions would be provided if he were diligently pursuing the development application
process. In reliance of the City’s representations and existing law that prohibited
government from abusing and engaging in an arbitrary legislative process that relieved it
of its contractual obligations, Weiss continued to proceed with the significant
expenditures in preparing the DRI application.

74, TIn 1998, after extensive preparation and collaboration with the City, Weiss
submitted the DRI application to the Department of Community Affairs, North Central
Regional Planning Council, Department of Environmental Protection, the Department of
Transportation and many other agencies and paid an application fee of $75,000 dollars.

25 Because the City wanted the rezoning of the Weiss property to PUD be

done concurrently with the DRI approval, consistent with the express terms of §8.0 of the



annexation agreement and its representations to Weiss, the City provided several
extensions of the sunset provision in its comprehensive plan for the rezoning of Weiss’s
property to PUD so that Weiss could continue in good faith the DRI pfocess.

76.  Weiss continued to diligently pursue the DRI application process and
submitted responses to requests for additional information by the various agencies and
completed an extensive traffic and environmental studies. The primary concern that held
up the DRI approval process was the concurrency issues related to traffic trips.
According to the Department of Transportation and other commenting agencies,
developments subsequently approved by the City pear the proposed project required Mr.
Weiss to take into account traffic trips reserved for those projects in determining whether
Mr. Weiss’s projected traffic trips exceeded the adopted levels of service for U.S. 441.

27,  Various offsite improvements were required in addition to the ones that
Mr. Weiss committed to in the annexation agreement in order to comply with
concurrency requirements. The proposed estimates for the offsite road improvement for.
Phase One were $2.5 million dollars.

THE IMPAIRMENT OF THE
ANNEXATION AGREEMENT AND PROPERTY INTERESTS

28.  During the development review process for the DRI, there was a
subsequent change in the City’s governing body. The new members of the elected City
Commission were politically hostile to Weiss’s project.

29 In an effort to derail the DRI project, the City embarked on a course of
conduct to first unlawfully terminate the annexation agreement without Weiss’s
knowledge and without obtaining written modification to the contract. Even though the

City personally represented to Weiss both prior to and after the annexation of his property



that he had the absolute right to apply for DRI based on a PUD classification under the
terms of the annexation agreemént, the City, through coercion, knowingly obtained the
unauthorized acquiescence from Weiss’s agents 10 unlawfully waive the annexation
agreement.

30.  After several public hearings from October 2000 through 2002 that
involved additional deliberate attempts to frustrate Weiss’s development efforts, the City
" Commission, on March 4, 2002, rendered a final decision when it formally adopted
Ordinance 0-01-20, which amended its comprehensive plan by changing the future land |
use designation for Weiss’s property from PUD to single family residential.  This
legislative decision by the City’s final policy makers formally killed the DRI project and
relieved the City from its obligations under the annexation agreement. Any future
applications by Weiss would have been an exercise in futility.

31.  This adverse final decision was made despite the express terms of the
Annexation Agreement that controlted the development of Weiss’s property and the
recommendation and findings of the City Planning Board and City staff that made clear
that Weiss had been diligent and that the City needed to allow sufficient time for the DRI
approval process to be concluded.

32. The underlying reasons given for the unauthorized change in the
comprehensive plan were based on environmental and concurrency CONCEns. These
reasons were purely pre-textual, transparemnt and lacked any justifiable basis given the
findings and determinations of City staff, the Planning Board, and the previous City
Commission. The concurrency issues were also clearly resolvable based on the proposed

off site road improvements. Simply put, the City wanted to relieve itself from the



obligations of the annexation agreement and its representations that had induced Weiss
into the annexation and his million-dollar expenditure for the DRI process. The City
wanted to avoid financial responsibility for the necessary infrastructure to mect
transportation cORCUrFency requirements while placating a growing political demand for
an increased greenbelt.

13 As a result of the political shifting sands in the make up of the City
Commission and its subsequent politically motivated adoption _of Ordinance 0-01-20
containing the Weiss amend?ment on March 4, 2002 that effectively prevented Weiss
from developing his PUD project and impaired his contract, Weiss suffered the loss of
vested development rights acquired by comumon law and by the Development Agreement.
Weiss also suffered the loss of other state recognized property interests flowing from his
ownership interests such as the value of his property and the right fo use it a manor
consistent with existing laws that was free from arbitrary encroachment.

COUNT 1

ARTICLE 1, SECTION 10 AND42 U.S.C. _§1983 CIVIL RIGHTS VIOLATIONS

34.  Paragraphs 1 through 33 alleged above are incorporated and realleged into
this count and action.

35, This count is an action against the City of Gainesville, Florida for
violations of Arthur D. Weiss’s rights under Article 1, Section 10 and the Fourteenth
Amendment. The City Council at all material times was imbued with authority under the
City charter to enact legislation and make policy for the City.

36. The City, through its City Commission, has engaged in an intentional

course of legislative conduct to frustrate Weiss’s legitimate vested rights, property



interests and contractual rights for purely personal and political reasons that are not
rationally related to serve a legitimate governmental interest and completely beyond its
legitimate police powers. Accordingly, the City Commission’s aforementioned unlawful
activities and violations of Weiss’s civil rights were also accomplished under the color of
state law and constitute state action.

37.  The City, through its ado-ﬁtion of Ordinance 0-0-1‘—-20’5 Weiss Amendment,
has purposefully and knowingly subjected Weiss to a deprivation of rights, privileges,
and immunities secured by Article 1, Section 10 and the Fourteenth Amendment to the
United States Constitution by:

a. Violating and abridging Weiss’s rights under Article 1, Section 10 by
unreasonably, arbitrarily and capriciously impairing and altering exiting obligations
under the City’s Annexation Agreement with Weiss by changing the future fand use
designation of the his property thereby preventing Weiss from developing his property
consistent with the PUD zoning classification development rights secured by §10 of the
contract. Because the City, based on bad faith and political motives, targeted Weiss
through the adoption of Ordinance 0.01-20 and prevented him from completing the DRI
application and the development process, the City also impaired or altered §8.0 of the
contract by its failure to pursue all reasonable actions necessary to fulfill its obligations
under the contract. By burdening Weiss with additional development exactions, the
City’s conduct also impairs §6.0, which limited exactions to those in the agreement.

b. Violating and abridging Weiss’s Qubstantive Due Process rights by
significantly arbitrarily and capriciously without any rational basis impairing his vested

rights and valuable ownership interests such as the right to use his property and the value

10



of his property. The City Commission for purely political reasons targeted Weiss when it
adopted and retroactively applied to Weiss the provisions of Ordinance 0-01-20 changing
the land use designation of Weiss’s property in order to frustrate Weiss’s ability to
develop his property under the terms of the existing annexation agreement,
representations and actions by the City relied upon by Weiss. Such action by the City
Commission was inconsistent with its planning staff, planning bo-ard? and previous City
Commission who found that Weiss’s PUD project was consistent with the City’s
comprehensive plan goal and objectives. Additionally, Weiss relied in good faith upon
the City’s representations and actions, has made substantial changes in his position and
incurred a million doltars in development expense that it would be highly inequitable and
unjust to destroy the rights he has acquired based on the City’s arbitrary and capricious,
irrational and bad faith conduct. Accordingly, the City’s adoption and retroactive
application of Ordinance 0-01-20’s provisions changing the use of Weiss’s propesty
exceeded its police powers.

38 Weiss is entitled to and requests attorney’s foes and costs upon the
successful prosecution of this 42 U.S.C. §1983 action, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1988.

39, Weiss sues for special and economic damages specifically including the
impairment of its vested rights and the loss of profit, as well as damages related to mental
pain and anguish.

40.  Weiss is also entitled to permanent injunctive relief so that the City 1s
enjoined from applying the single-family future land use designation and the single

family residential zoning classification that are inconsistent and in conflict with the

11



obligations contained in the annexation agreement, its representations and actions relied
upon by Weiss.
WHEREFORE, Weiss demands a judgment for damages, permanent injunction
and attorneys fees, costs against the City and trial by jury.
COUNT IX

BREACH OF CONTRACT

41. | Paragraphs 1 through 33, as alleged, are incorporated and realleged in this

count and action.

47 Weiss sues the City for breach of the annexation agreement dated October
30, 1989,

43.  The City has breached the express provisions of the annexation agreement,
which permitted Weiss to develop his property consistent with the permitted uses set for
in Exhibit B to the agreement. Accordingly, the City has also breached §6, §8, and §10of
the agreement.

44, In addition to violating the express terms of the contract as set forth above,
the City Commission has embarked on a course of bad faith dealing based on political
motives in order to avoid its express and implied duties and obligations under the
contract. ']i"‘hé City has failed to take the necessary actions as required under the express
terms of the contract as set forth § 8 of the contract. The City’s conduct as described
herein, amounts to a minimum, constructive fraud against Weiss if such conduct is not

remedied.

12



45 The aforementioned unconscionable conduct as well as other duplicitous
acts were initiated at the rdireot'ion of the City so as to impern:isﬁbly interfere and impair
the contract

WHEREFORE, Arthur D. Weiss demands judgment and trial by jury for breach
of contract, the breach of impﬁed covenant of good faith against the City and for his
general damages incurred as a result of the City’s breach.

COUNT IV

DECLARATORY RELIEF

46.  Paragraphs 1 through 33, alleged above are incorporated and re-alleged
into this count and action.

47 This is a cause of action for declaratory judgment pursuant to Florida
Statutes Chapter 86.

48 Weiss has vested property rights with respect to the PUD classification
based on the representations that the City made to him that induced his consent to the
voluntary annexation and the million-dollar expenditure related to the DRI application

process.

49.  The City Commission, on March 4,2002, rendered a final decision when it
formally adopted Ordinance 0-01-20 which amended its comprehensive plan by changing
the future land use designation for Weiss’s property from PUD to single family
residential. This legislative decision by the City’s final policy makers formally killed
Weiss’s DRI project.

50. | Since Weiss has demonstrably relied to his substantial detriment on the

representations and actions of the City at the time he consented to the voluntary

13



annexation of his property and expended significant sums of money for its development,
it would be unjust and highly inequitable to permit the City to destroy those vested rights
through conduct that is arbitrary, caprici(ius and confiscatory. Such conduct would also
be inconsistent with Weiss’s substantive :lue process rights under the Federal and State

Constitutions.

S1.  Based on the forgoing events any attempt to make further application or

seek variances would be an exercise in futility

WHEREFORE, Arthur D. Weiss ;eeks a judgment in his favor declaring that the
City’s adoption of Ordinance 0-01-20 cﬁanging the future land use designation for his
property from PUD to single family res1dential is invalid based om the doctrine of
equitable estoppel and also invalid on alfernatlve grounds based on the City’s arbitrary
and capricious conduct in violation of the Florida Consﬁtutlon guarantee under Arficle 1
Section 9 of substantive due process. Weiés requests that the court restore his rights under
the annexation agreement and further reqllests his costs and attorney’s fees based on the
City’s pre-suit bad faith conduct pursuant to the court’s inherent power, and any other
relief if the court may deem appropriate. |

C(é)UNT A%

INVERSE CONDEMNATION

52.  Paragraphs 1 through 33, é.s alleged, are incorporated and realleged in this
|

count and action,

53 This cause of action is brought in the alternative pursuant to the Florida

Constitution for inverse condemnation.

54.  The City’s adoption of Ordinance 0-01-20 chauging the future land use

14



designation for Weiss’s property from PUD to single family residential did not
substantially advance a legitimate governmental interest since it was based on purely
political motives and for the purpose of relieving itself from its obligations under the
Annexation Agreement. Such action is also contrary to the actions and determinations of
City staff, planning board, and the previous City Commission tﬁat found Weiss’s project
to be consistent with City’s comprehensive plan, goals and objectives.

55 As a direct result of the City’s conduct, Weiss has been prevented from
developing his property consistent with the express terms of the annexation agreement,
previous representations and actions of the City relied upon by Weiss and has suffered a
significant diminution in the value of his property and the loss of his investment backed
expectations.

s6.  Accordingly, Weiss is entitled to just compensation for the temporary
taking of his property and in the alternative, compensation for the diminution in the value
of his property if the taking is permanent.

57 Based on the adoption of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment by the City
Commission specifically targeting Weiss’s property for a change in future land use
designation from PUD to single family residential that is in direct violation of the
Annexation Agreement, any future applications for variances or compensation to the City
would be an exercise in futility.

WHEREFORE, Arthur D. Weiss respectfully requests jﬁdgment in his favor for
just compensation and damages as a result of the temporary taking or in the alternative,
the diminution in the value of his property for a permanent taking, his costs and

attorney’s fees, and any other relief if the court may deem appropriate and a trial by jury.

15



Dated this l @ day of September, 2003.

Cigunsel for Plaintiff

P.0. Box 38 :

St. Augustine, FL 32085

Telephone: (904) 825-1942
Facsimile: (904) 825-1912

Florida Bar No.: 0745741

E-Mail: meredithlawfirm@bellsouth.net

16
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ANNEXATION AGREEMEHT
BETWEENW
ARTHUR D. WEISS
AND

THE CITY OF GAINESVILLE,
a Florida mupicipal corxporation

CEXHIBIT
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ANHEXATION AGREEMENT

THIS ANNEXATION AGREEMENT {"Agreement”) is made and entered into this

16th day of Octaober , 1989, by and between ARTHUR D. WEISS ("Ownar"),

and the CITY OF GAINESVILLE, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida
("Cicy™),
WITNESGSETH:

WHEREAS, Owner owns a8 parcel of real property located in unincorporated
Alachua County, a legal description of which is attached hsreto and made a
part hersof as Exhibit "A" (“Property"}; and

WHEREAS, Owner desires to develop the Property as a high~quality pilanned
development under the complete. unified, legal control of Cwner; and

WHEREAS, the City regards U.S. Route 441 as a major gateway to the City.
and therefore prafars any development of property abutting this significant
artery to include aesthetic cansidagations regulting in high gquality
development with landsesping and signage controls; and

WHEREAS, in relismce upon the gndartakings and obligationsz of tha City,
as ecet forth herein, Owner has, simultaveously with the exscution of this
Agreement, filsd a letter of consent for anooexation of the Property by
referasndum into the City pursuant to Sectlon 171.0413, Florida Statutea basaed
upon the understandings which form the basis of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to annex the Property into the City and, to that
end, shall initiate the process required by law to annex the Property by
refersndum pursuant to Section 171.0413, Florida Séatutes: and

WHEREAS, Owner and the City balieve that it is in the best interast of

each party to enable the Property to be developed in accordance with the

P/74201M/13
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conceptual plan described herein, and in accordance with applicable Florida
law, the Charter and Code of Ordinances of the City of Gainesville, Florida;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in considerétion of mutual benefits and the public
intarast and other goed and valuable considerations, tha receipt and
sufficlency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hareto agree 28
follows:

1.0 Recltalz. The foregoing recitations are true and corxrect and are
hereby incorporated hereiun by reference. All exhibits to this Agreement are
hereby deemed a part hereof.

2.0 Authority. This Agreement is entered into under the authority of
the Florida Comstitution (including Article VIII, Section 2(b) thereof), tha
general powers conferred .upon municipalities by statuts and otherwise
(including Chapter 166, Florida Statutes), and the City's Charter.

3.0 Annexatien. Simultaneously with the exzecution of this Agreement,
Owner has filed a letter of consent ¢or annexation of the Property Dby
referendum into the City in compliance with Sectiom 171.0413, Florida
Statutes, and all oﬁhar applicable state and local laws and regulstiona. The
City shall immediately initiate the process to establish that annexation
pursuant to a referendum 1n compliance with Section 171,0413, Florida
Statutes, and all other applicable state and local laws and regulaticms.

4.0 Conceptual Plag. Exhibit "B nereto ia a conceptual plan for the
development of the property. The sizes, configurations and boundaries of the
parcels and roadways shown in Exhibit "B" ara for conceptual planning purposes
only and shall not bind Owner to develop the Property im strict conformity
with Exhibit "B". In the event of any conflict between the terms of this

Agreement and the provigions of the gonceptusl plan set forth an Exhibit “B%,

F/4201M/13
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this Agreement shall control, except that, im the event of any conflict
between the terms of this Agreement and the terms of the notes and legend
included in Exhibit "B", the notes and legend in Exhibit “B" shall control.

The City agrees to recommend to the Florlda Department of Transportation
("FDOT") the curb cuts, median cuts and full left and right turn ingress and
egress to the Property from U.S. Route 441 at the four (4) access polnts showa
in Exhibit “B". Owner agrees to construct, at his expeanse, and dedicate the
right of way necessary for turn lanes and traffic signals on U.S5. Route 441
adjacent to the Property if required by FDOT during the development of
regional impact review process to offset the impact of development of the
Property. The parties acknowledge that the four (4) access points shown in
Exhibit "B" align with medisn openings on U.S. Route 441. The parties further
acknowledge that FDOT has scole jurisdiction over the number and location of
road connactions from the Property to U.5. Route 441.

The clamsification labels and descriptiona pertaining to the parcels in
Exhibit "B" are spproximate. Parcels A, B, C and D shall be used for
residential purposes unless the parties otherwise agree in writing. The
parties acknowledge that the residential portions of the Property, as shawo in
Exhihit w»g", ghall consist of = maximum of two thousand two hundred twenty
four (2,224) dwelling units on approximately six hundred (600} acres. The
locations of the greembelt and environmental areas shown in Exhibit "B" are
approximate, the exact locatiomn and configuration of said greembelt and
gnvironmental areas zhall be subject to changa pursuant o requlations of the
Florida Department of Environmental Regulation and other state and federal

permitting agencies.

F/4201M/13
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The parties acknmowledge that the parcals in Exhiblt “B" are calculated in
gross acres and when developed will include, as necessary, storm water
ratention and detention aress, as well as the greenbelt areas and
environmental areas shown in Exhibit wg"*, Additionally, Owner agrees, when
developing the Property, to designate Three thousand eight hundred (3,800)
linear fest of the frontage of the Property adjacent to U.S. Boute 441 ws a
isndscaped setback area ("Landscaped Setback"). The location(s) and
configuratiocn(s) of the Landscaped Satback shall be determined by Owner. Tha
Landscaped Setback may include, at Ownar's dlscretion, storm water reteation
and detention areas, greenbalt apd environmental areas, landscapinq; rosdway
and driveway crossings, unpaved portions of public road rights-of-way,
gsasements and sigaage. The Landscaped Setback shall average approximately 100
feet in width.

Parcels G, H and I shall De developed for a combinstion of business,
office, office rssearch, light industrial, service and retail uses, and
accessory uses allowed Dby City Cods, Parcels G, H and I comstitute
approximata}y 185 gross acres. The parties mgreae that development on Parcels
G, H snd I shall occur within 120 acres. The remaining area of 65 acres can
be used, at Owner's discretion, for storm water deteption and retention areas,
greeabelt and anvironmental areas, landscaping, Landscaped Setback, ropdways
and driveways, rights-of-way, eascments and sigumage.

The parties acknowledge that portions of the eavironmental areas shown in
Exhibit "BY may. during the developmest of regional impact review process, be
ideptified as wetlands. Watlands, ghall be as defined in 33 CFR 328.3(b).
. Ouser may use or deavelop wetlands provided that no nat loss of wetlands will

occur aad that the development of wetlsnds will be in compiiance with all
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federal, atats, and local regulations. Owner shall include, in  This
development of regional impact application for davalopment approval, a caéy of
a leatter raquestiﬁq that the United States Army Corps of Engineers detarmine
the extent of its Jjurisdiction over Bany wetlands which may exist on the
Property.

The parties acknowledge that pursuant to Rule §J-12,007(12), F.A.C., as it
presently exists, the City is required to submit Ats comprehensive plan to the
Florida Department of Community Affaira for initia)l compliance review on
June 1, 1991. The partles sgree that unlesa Owner petitions the Cicy for a
1and use plan amendment in substantial compliaﬁce with Exhibit "B*, prior to
June 1, 1991, the Proparty shall continue to be governed by Alachua County's
Land Use Plan, moning ordinances and land development regulations uatil such
time as the City adopts itz comprehensive plan as required by
Section 163.3184, Florid_a gtatutes, and rezones the property to comply with
the City's adopted comprehensive plan as provided by Saction 171.0682(2),
Florida Statutes. BRefors the time that the Clty approves jts lsnd use plan
and resonas the Property, Owner shall be entlitled to any development permits
which Owner has been validly issued by Alachua County as of the sffsctiva date
of this Agresment.

The parties acknowledge that Exhibit “B* shall be the basis for Owner's
development of the Propexty. future amendments to the Cicy’'s comprahensive
plan, and rezoning of the Froperty, aubject to such modifications as may be
mutually agreed upon by the partiss. The parties recognize and acknowledge
that Owner may engage opne OF WOre developers or bullders, other than Owner, Lo
effect the development of the Property, including rhe sale of all or portioms

of the Property to such developers or builders. The psartias hereto further
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recogniza and acknowledge that as the development process proceeds, it may be
peceasary to smend Exhibit “B" and the City'a adopted land use plan as may be
mutually agreed upon by the partles.

Tha parties acknowledge that the development of the Property shall be
subject to the development of regional impact review process as contained in
Section 2380.06, Florida Statutes. Owner agrees to file an application for
development approval pursuaat to Chapter 380, Florida Statutes, within
twenty-four (24) months of the completion of cona:rucc;an by Alachua County of
a permanent Northwast 43rd Streaet bisecting the proparty for a linear distance
of at least one thousand (1,000) feet. Hothing contained herein shall be
construsd ss requiring the City to comstruct Northweste 43rd Street;

The City shall do what 13 reasonsbly necesdary and within ita goveramental
powers and authority to grant and allow development permits and epprovals for
the orderly development of the Property. Owner or bhia authorized
representative shall submit to the City such applications and other
documentation and comply with such other procedures as may be normelly and
customarily required by the City for land use plan amendments, rezonlags,
plats, site plans snd other davelopment approvala or permits. Hothing
contained herein shall pracluda tha City £rom exercising its proper @oaning aand
development review powers for the protection of the public and in accordance
with the lagieimaﬁa axzercises of the police power for the protection of the
community.

Except as otherwise set forth herein, all davelopment of the Property
shall be subject to complisnce with City ordinances, and with requlations of
state, local and federal agencies raelative to environmental and wetlands

protection. Nothing in thia Agreement shall be. deemed to limit the right of
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the City Commissiom to amend its development requlations, building codes,
zoning codea, land use plans or other ordinances for the protaction of the
public health, safety and welfare, Except as otherwisze set forth haerela, none
of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to amend, modify or
ostherwise change the provisiona of any ordinanca or regulation of the City or
any other governmental agency. |

5.0 zggpg;;x_gxng;;hin. Ownar acknowledges and represents Lo the City
that Owner is the ownar of the Proparty and that Owner iz empowered to enter
into this Annexation Agresemsat, Owner further rapresents that nothing in thisg
Agreement is barred or prohibited by any othsr agrsement between Owner and any
governmental agency or any other third party.

6.0 Public Facilities. City water sarvice iz currently availsble at the
boundary of the Property. City sewer linea will be available at the ﬁoundary
of the Property when needed by Owner in accordsnce with the City's water and
wastewater extenalon policy. Clty water and sewer plant capacity to serve the
dwalling units end non-residential uses shown in Exhibie vBY, ghall be
provided by tha City at the time Owner requests service to the FProperty

‘" according to the City's adopted rulaa, regulations and procedures for
provision of said service in effect at the date of application for said
gervice.

Ownar shall pay all regular and guthorized City wutility, water,
wastewatsr, electric and stormwater permit fees, uzer rates and impact fees
where applicsble. Owner shall not, however, be required to pay any impact
fees or development exactions enscted by the Cicy after the date the parties

execute this Agreement.
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7.0 Resarvation or Dedication of Land. Owner heraby agrees to dedicata
to the publle the school site and park sites shown in Exhibit *B", Owner
further agrees to preserve, or dedicate to the public such environmental arsas
and greenbelt areas shown in Exhibit "B" as the parties may agree. Any such
environmental or greenbelt areas dedicated to the public shall be counted ss
park dedication pursuant to any City ordinance or regulation requiring such
park land dedlication. Owner further agrees to dadicate a twelve foot (12')
strip of lamd to the City for right-of-way for expansion of U.S. Route 441,
within thirty (30) daya of the award of a construction contract for the
widening of V.5, Route 441 to six (6) lanes adjacent to the Property. The
city shall not be required to pay for land dedicated pursuant to this
paragraph.

8.0 Dus Diligence. The City and Owner further covenant that they szhall

immediately commence all reaszonsble sctions necessary te fulfill their

obligations hereunder and shall diligently pursue the same throughout the

existence of this Agreemant.
9.0 Miscellapeous.

6.1 Entir rapement . fhiu Agreement sets forth all of the
promises, covenants, agreements, conditions and understandings ‘batwaan tha
parties hereto, and supersedes all prior and contemporanecus agreements,
understaudings, inducements or conditions, express or implied, oral or
written, except as herein contained.

9.2 Propoups. All promouns and any variations thereof shall he
deemed to refer to the masculine, feminine and neuter, singular or plural, a5
the identity of the party ox parties, personal representatives, successors or

assigns may reguire.
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9.3 Seversbility. The invalidity of any provisiom hereof shall in
no way affect or invalidate the remaionder of this Agreement.

9.4 Coupterparts. This Agreement may bo executed in one or wmore
counterparta, each of which‘shall be deemed sn original, but all of which
shall together constitute one in the same inatrument.

9.5 QGoverning Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accoerdance
with the laws of the Gtate of Florlda.

9.6 Ierm. This Agreement shall Dbecome effective upon the
annexation of the Proparty inmto the City. This Agreemsnt, once effective,
ghall ba binding upon and enforceabla by and sgainat the parties héreto and
their assigns. This Agreement shall remain in effect for a term of fifteen
(15) years £from the offective date, at which time all terms, conditlions,
proviaions and understandings of this Agreement ahall explre and become null
and void and of no further force and effact. A copy of this Agreement shall
be recorded mmong the Public Records of Alachua County, Florida, upon taking
affect.

9.7 Notice. Any notice to be given shall be in writing end shall
be sent by certiflied mall, return receipt reguested. to the perty d»eing
poticed at the following addresses!

AS TO CITY: City Monager
City of Gainesville
Pogt Office Box 490
Gainsville, Plorida 32602
COPY TO: City Attorney
City of Galnssville
pPost Office Hox 1110

Gajinaville, Florida 32602

AS TO OWNER! Arthur D. Welss
19687 Oak Brook Circle
Boes Raton, Florvida 33434

¥/A201M/713



TEL:

COPY TO:

febh $8.05 4:50 NoO.UGUDI P.1Z

Ruden, Barnett, McClosky, Smith, Schuster & Russell, P.A.
Post Office Box 1800

¥ort Lauderdsle, Florida 33302

Attentign: Dennis D. Mele

16.0 MBMM&. owner shall have the right to use and develop

the Property a8 described in this Agreement. Furthermore, Owner d&oes not

waive sny right to

use or develop the Praperty arising under the common law or

the laws of the State of Florida.

TN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement az of the day

and year firast above written.

ATTEBT:

Mary £ B. Frazer,

- y

(R Se— 1 P}

[oh b 44

cITY OF GAINESBVILLE, a Florlids
munh’:ﬁal corporation

VD T Oz

thia Moore Chestnut  MAYOR

Clerk of theiommission

Signed, sealed and
in the/ presence of:

TF 27 1989

CITY ATIORNEY

deliversd
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STATE OF FLORIDA )
) 88
COURTY OF ALACHUA )

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this _ 30fh day of_October , 1989, befors me
personally appeared Cunthia M, Cheslmut Mayor of the CITY OF GAINESVILLE,
a municipal corporation under the laws of the Stete of Florida, to me well
kunown and kazown to me to be the pergon who exzxecuted the foregoling instrument
as such officer and acknowledged the exscution thereof to be his fres act and
deed a3 such cfficar for the wasm and purposes tharein mentioned and that he
affixed thersto the official wseal of asald corporatiom, and that the =zaid
inntrwnent is the act and deed of sald corporation,

Witness my hend and official seal this _30th  aay of _Uctoben ., 1939,

@/Lumm w) }%”ﬁ (SEAL)

NOTARY PUBLI®
State of Florida at Large

My Commission Expires:

NOTARY PUDLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA AT (ARGE
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES DECEMBER 11, 1088

STATE OF PLORIDA }
) BS:
COUNTY OF ERQUEARD

! HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ON THIS ACIeA day of L)g% , 1989, before me

personally appeared ARTHUR D. WEISS, to ma waell known and known to me to ba
the individusl described in and who executed the foregoing imstrument, aund
acknowledged before ms that he executed the same for the purposes therain
expresded.

WITNESS my hand and official seal this JOW’\ day of &% . 1889,

DWD - /"ﬂ’f@- (SEAL)

FQTARY PUBLIC
Stats of Florida at Large

My Commisslon Expires:

b Ic g
camrrsszg, ; TATE or FLoRtY

“m
. [
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